Court of Appeals Cause No. 44222-1

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

SHAWN GREENHALGH and JAMES PFAFF, Petitioners

v.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS et al., Respondents

PETITION FOR REVIEW

LaDonna Jones, Attorney for Petitioners WSBA #25427 520 East Denny Way Seattle, WA 98122 (206) 725-6940

Russell Odell, Attorney for Petitioners WSBA #31287 251 – 153rd Place Southeast Bellevue, WA 98007 (425) 653-3693

A. Identity of Petitioners

Petitioners Shawn Greenhalgh and James Pfaff ask this Court to accept review of the Court of Appeals' decision terminating review designated in Part B of this petition.

B. Court of Appeals Decisions

Petitioners seek review of the published opinion issued by the Court of Appeals, Division II, in <u>Greenhalgh v. Dep't of Corrections</u>, 042914 WACA, 44222-1-II, and the June 24, 2014 order denying the Petitioners' Motion to Reconsider.

A copy of the decision is in the Appendix at A-2 through A-16. A copy of the order denying Petitioners' Motion to Reconsider is in the Appendix at A-17.

C. Issues Presented for Review

- 1. Does RCW 72.02.045(3) require the Respondents, as the **custodian** of all funds and valuable personal property of inmates, to **store** previously authorized non-contraband inmate personal clothing so that this personal clothing can be delivered to the inmate upon release from custody?
- Does January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000 violate RCW
 72.02.045(3) by reclassifying as contraband previously authorized non-

contraband inmate personal clothing that was brought in upon admission to the institution; sent, brought, or earned during custody; or forwarded to the superintendent on behalf of the inmate?

- 3. Does RCW 72.02.045(3) require the Respondents to deliver to an inmate upon the inmate's release from custody previously authorized non-contraband inmate personal clothing that was either in the Washington State Department of Correction's (WDOC) constructive or actual possession?
- 4. Does RCW 72.02.045(3) require the WDOC to deliver, upon an inmate's release from custody, **all** previously authorized non-contraband personal clothing?
- 5. Does January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000 violate RCW 72.02.045(3) by requiring inmates to either pay the mailing costs for previously authorized non-contraband inmate personal clothing or lose ownership of this personal property through donation and /or destruction?
- 6. Did the lower court improperly dismiss the Petitioners' claims under WAC 137-36-060, RCW 9.92.110, Article I, §§ 3 and 15 of the Washington State Constitution, the Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S.

Constitution, and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 when summary judgment was granted without analyzing these additional causes of action on the record?

- 7. Did the lower court improperly dismiss the Petitioners' causes of action under WAC 137-36-060, RCW 9.92.110, Article I, §§ 3 and 15 of the Washington State Constitution, the Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution, and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 when summary judgment was granted on the lower court's incorrect conclusion that January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000 did not violate RCW 72.02.045(3)?
- 8. On issues decided by the appellate court unrelated to their assignment of error, should the Petitioners have been given the opportunity to provide written argument on their claims under WAC 137-36-060, RCW 9.92.110, Article I, §§ 3 and 15 of the Washington State Constitution, the Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution, and 42 U.S.C. § 1983?

D. Statement of the Case

1. Procedural History

On June 25, 2012, the Petitioners, prison inmates who are in the custody of the WDOC, filed a complaint against the WDOC, former WDOC Secretary Eldon Vail, and the State of Washington. CP 3. The

complaint also requested class certification for all other inmates similarly situated. CP 3. On July 3, 2012, the Petitioners filed an Amended Class Action Complaint that included causes of action under 72.02.045(3), WAC 137-36-060, RCW 9.92.110, Article I, §§ 3 and 15 of the Washington State Constitution, and the Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. CP 18.

On August 22, 2012, the Respondents moved for partial summary judgment, pursuant to CR 56, on the Petitioners' cause of action under RCW 72.02.045(3), WAC 137-36-060, RCW 9.92.110, Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution, and 42 U.S.C. § 1983. CP 90. The Petitioners' claims under Article I, §§ 3 and 15 of the State of Washington Constitution were not addressed in Defendants' Memorandum in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment. CP 39-51. On September 14, 2012, the Petitioners moved for a continuance of the Respondents' motion for summary judgment for their federal substantive due process claim, to strike affirmative defenses, and to compel discovery with sanctions. CP 91-100.

On September 28, 2012, the lower court heard partial oral argument on the Petitioners' motion to continue the Respondents' motion for summary judgment on their federal substantive due process claim and

on the Respondents' motion for summary judgment. RP 1-36. The lower court saw no benefit to hearing argument on the Petitioners' motion to compel discovery before the hearing on the Respondents' motion for summary judgment. RP 13. The lower court stayed all pending discovery and ruled that the hearing for the motions would be continued for four weeks to give the Petitioners an opportunity to file a supplemental brief and to give the defendants an opportunity to file a reply brief. RP 32, 36. The hearing was reset for October 26, 2012. RP 36.

On October 26, 2012, after hearing oral argument, the lower court concluded that, despite the challenges presented to inmates, the WDOC was not meant to be a "self-storage unit for inmates" and that "the department has fulfilled its responsibility under the statutory and constitutional law." RP 17-18. Based on these conclusions, the lower court determined that Petitioners' motion to compel discovery and sanctions was moot, denied Petitioners' motion to continue defendants' summary judgment motion on their substantive due process claims, granted the defendants' summary judgment motion, and dismissed with prejudice all the Petitioners causes of action. RP 1-18, CP 350-51.

The Petitioners filed an appeal with the Court of Appeal, Division II, requesting that the lower court's order be reversed and the Petitioners

case be remanded. On April 29, 2014, the Court of Appeals, in a published opinion, held "[t]here is no statutory requirement that DOC store all inmate property, Greenhalgh and Pfaff were not subject to illegal forfeiture of their property, and DOC gave them adequate due process."

Greenhalgh v. Dep't of Corrections, 042914 WACA, 44222-1-II, pp. 1-2;

A-2. On June 24, 2014 denied the Petitioners' motion for reconsideration of these holdings. A-3.

2. Factual Background

Prior to January 1, 2010, the Petitioners had authorized non-contraband personal clothing they were allowed to own and possess under previous DOC 440.000 Policies. CP 320, 322. In late 2008, in order to cut laundry costs, the WDOC decided to eliminate, except for baseball hats; raincoats; and shoes/sneakers, inmate possession of personal clothing. CP 52-53, 55. In a January 20, 2009 memorandum, inmates were informed of the cost-cutting measure that would eliminate their possession of personal clothing. CP 53, 55. On March 1, 2009, WDOC amended DOC Policy 440.000. CP 56-65. The relevant portion of this policy provides as follows:

II. Effective January 1, 2010, offenders will not be authorized to retain any personal clothing except

shoes/sneakers/sandals, baseball hats, and plastic raincoats per Attachment 3.

A. Offenders may retain personal clothing listed on the Maximum Allowable Personal Property Matrix (Attachments 1 and 2) through December 31, 2009.

CP 57. This policy further provides:

XI. Disposition Options

- A. Between July 1, 2009, and September 30, 2009, offenders can dispose of personal clothing (i.e., no more than 2 18" x 12" x 10" boxes, 15 pounds each) by shipping it, at the Department's expense, to a non-incarcerated person designated on DOC 21-139 Property Disposition.
- B. Through December 31, 2009, offenders may dispose of personal clothing via an approved visitor after a scheduled visit.
- C. Offenders will have 30 days to dispose of the property identified as excess or unauthorized.
 - 1. Offenders may dispose of their excess or unauthorized personal property, including personal clothing disposed of after September 30, 2009, by shipping it, at their own expense, to a non-incarcerated person designated by the offender on DOC 21-139 Property Disposition.
 - 2. If the offender is without funds, refuses to pay the required postage or refuses to designate an individual to

receive the property, such items will be:

- a. Donated to a charitable organization per WAC 137-36-040, or
- b. Destroyed by staff per DOC
 420.375 Contraband and
 Evidence Handling.

CP 63-64, 66.

On March 29, 2009, Petitioner Greenhalgh filed an Offender Complaint with the WDOC contending that "[f]irst, it is fundamentally unfair for DOC to first authorize me to purchase personal clothing under DOC 440.000 . . .; and, Second the revised version of DOC Policy 440.000 requiring me to send my personal clothing out of the Department or it will be considered abandoned and disposed of as contraband violates RCW 72.02.045 because this statute requires the Department to store my personal property and deliver it to me upon my release." CP 269. After this initial grievance was denied, Petitioner Greenhalgh appealed to the next levels. CP 269-75. All of his subsequent appeals were also denied. CP 269, 271, 273, 275.

On November 30, 2009, former WDOC Secretary Eldon Vail approved the revised January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000. CP 253-67.

In a letter dated April 30, 2010, after the revised January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000 went into effect, Petitioner Greenhalgh requested that Superintendent Scott Frakes of the Monroe Correctional Complex (MCC), pursuant to RCW 72.02.045(3), store his personal clothing until he either went to work release or he was released from total confinement. CP 328, 151. In a May 18, 2010 memorandum, Captain Ed Fritch of MCC informed Petitioner Greenhalgh that "[e]ven until April 15, 2010, personal clothing confiscated in cell searches at MCC was not processed as contraband at the Superintendent's direction. . . . The Superintendent has indicated that he will follow policy and will not store your unauthorized personal clothing as your designated non-incarcerated person." CP 330. On August 12, 2010, after his grievances were denied and the superintendent declined to store his personal clothing, Petitioner Greenhalgh submitted a Property Disposition to have his grey sweatshirt, blue sweatshirt, and fleece jacket mailed, at his expense, to the Margarts. CP 151, 153. On August 19, 2010, after storing Petitioner Greenhalgh's personal clothing for eight months and after he paid the mailing cost of \$10.52, WDOC mailed the aforementioned clothing to the Margarts. CP 151, 153.

In a January 11, 2011 letter from McNeil Island Corrections Center (MICC), after having stored his personal clothing for more than a year, Petitioner Pfaff was told he had 30 days to pay the \$15.00 mailing cost or his personal clothing would be donated or destroyed per WDOC policy. CP 314. When Petitioner Pfaff received this letter, his spendable account had a balance of \$0.64 on January 8, 2011, \$4.31 on January 18, 2011, and \$0.48 on February 11, 2011. CP 82. Petitioner Pfaff's spendable account had balances of less than \$10.00 from December 10, 2010 through January 14, 2011 and balances of less than \$15.00 from January 11, 2011 through February 11, 2011. CP 82. Petitioner Pfaff's postage account had a balance of \$10.50 on December 23, 2010 and a balance of \$0.90 on February 14, 2011. CP 84. On February 2, 2011, Pfaff received \$35.00 from the Wiles. CP 85. This money was transferred to his spendable account on February 17, 2011 to pay UPS postage of \$36.86. CP 82, 85. Because Petitioner Pfaff did not have the requested \$15.00 in his spendable or postage accounts when the 30-day notice was first received and when the shipping cost was due to be paid, in a letter dated February 8, 2011, he directed the MICC Property Room to dispose of his personal clothing. Based on the March 2009 Maximum Allowable Personal Property Matrix Men's Facilities, Petitioner Pfaff's clothing had a value of \$255.00. CP 74, 322, 324.

E. Arguments Why Review Should be Accepted

This case is about the protected ownership rights of inmates who are or who have been in the custody of WDOC. The Petitioners and other past and present inmates who are similarly situated have been deprived of their vested ownership rights in their funds and personal clothing as a result of the Respondents' implementation of January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000. Review by this Court is necessary because the decision by the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of this Court, involves issues of substantial public interest, and involves significant questions of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington and the United States Constitution.

1. The Decision of the Court of Appeals is in Conflict With a Decision of the Supreme Court

While "RCW 72.01.050(2) gives the secretary of corrections, and DOC, a broad grant of power to manage and govern correctional facilities; DOC superintendents may make, amend, and repeal rules for the administration and safety of his/her institution. RCW 72.02.045(4)," this Court, as the final authority of statutory construction, need not approve a policy by the Respondents that is inconsistent with a statute.

Greenhalgh v. Dep't of Corrections, 042914 WACA, 44222-1-II, p. 5,

para. 1; Moses v. Dep't of Soc. & Health Servs., 90 Wn.2d 271, 274, 581 P.2d 152 (1978). This Court in Burton v. Lehman, 153 Wn.2d 416, 425, 103 P.3d 1230 (2005), reasoned that:

the phrase 'all . . . valuable personal property in the possession of the superintendent belonging to such convicted persons shall be delivered to them' cannot be artificially limited. Nothing in the statute indicates that only some of an inmates [sic] property shall be delivered, nor does it state that the property shall be delivered at such convicted persons expense.

This Court further reasoned that the "DOC may not impose requirements that inmates must choose between having to pay shipping costs or lose their ownership." Burton, 153 Wn.2d at 426. This is exactly what the January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000 does. The Court of Appeals concludes, "DOC had the authority to require Greenhalgh and Pfaff to either pay to ship their property out or dispose of it." Greenhalgh, 042914 WACA at p. 8, para. 1. This conclusion by the Court of Appeals is in direct conflict with Burton.

The Court of Appeals further holds that "RCW 72.02.045(3) and WAC 137-36-060 do not require DOC to store all of an inmate's property including previously authorized contraband." <u>Greenhalgh</u>, 042914 WACA at p. 4, para. 1. This holding is also inconsistent with this Court's reasoning that "DOC superintendents are custodians of inmate property and may limit an inmate's actual possession." Burton, 153 Wn.2d at 424.

This statement by this Court seems to imply a requirement of storage/preservation of inmate property by WDOC as part of its custodial obligations under RCW 72.02.045(3), inclusion of inmate property within WDOC constructive and actual possession, and inclusion of previously possessed and authorized non-contraband inmate property. If the WDOC limits an inmate's actual possession of personal property, then that property would have to be in the WDOC's possession and in storage. Moreover, if either the inmate or the WDOC possesses the inmate's personal property, the WDOC has clearly deemed it authorized non-contraband. 2

Finally, by addressing the Petitioners' additional claims and by not remanding to the lower court, the Court of Appeals' decision conflicts with <u>Burton</u>. This Court found that the <u>Burton</u> petitioners' additional causes of action "were initially dismissed by the superior court **without discussion** based on **the incorrect conclusion** that Policy 440.000

¹The WDOC interprets possession to include both their constructive and actual possession of inmate personal property. "Upon formal release from the institution, all personal property in the **custody** of the superintendent shall be returned to the inmate." WAC 137-36-060 (emphasis added). See also Sect. XIII of January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.00. CP 261.

²Just like the Court of Appeals findings conflict with <u>Burton</u>, they conflict with the court's findings in <u>Blum v. Arizona</u>, 829 P.2d 1247, 1248, 171 Ariz. 201, 202 (1992). <u>See</u> Brief of Appellants and the Petitioners' Motion to Reconsider (Petitioners' arguments concerning the persuasiveness of Blum).

does not violate RCW 72.02.045(3)." Burton, 153 Wn.2d at 426 (emphasis added). This Court held that this dismissal was inappropriate and remanded the case back to the lower court for further proceedings on these additional claims. Id. Because the lower court in this case concluded that January 1, 2010 WDOC Policy 440.000 did not violate the current RCW 72.02.045(3), like in the Burton case, it failed to discuss its reasoning for dismissing the Petitioners' other causes of action under WAC 137-36-060; RCW 9.92.110; Article I, §§ 3 and 15 of the Washington State Constitution; the Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution; and 42 U.S.C. § 1983. RP 17-18 (10/26/12). While the Petitioners agree that the "superior court does not need to state its reasoning in the order granting summary judgment;" Burton, United States v. Alanis, 335 F.3d 965, n. 2 (9th Cir. 2003); and Jordan v. Lefevre, 206 F.3d 196, 201-02 (2d Cir. 2000) clearly supports the proposition that the superior court must state its reasoning for each cause of action presented for summary judgment on the record. Greenhalgh, 042914 WACA at p. 9. With these considerations in mind, the Supreme Court should accept review of this case.

2. <u>The Petition Involves Issues of Substantial Public Interest That Should be Determined by the Supreme Court</u>

Resolution of this case also turns upon construction of statutory language that has not been defined by the legislature and that has not been interpreted by this Court. Additionally, whether, pursuant to RCW 72.02.045(3), previously authorized non-contraband inmate personal property can be reclassified as contraband has not been interpreted by this Court. Similarly, a decision by this Court will assist the Respondents in administering, under RCW 72.02.045(3), the correctional institutions of Washington State in a uniform manner and remove any doubt as to the legality of their future exercise of authority relating to previously authorized non-contraband valuable personal property that the inmates are no longer allowed to possess.

Furthermore, this Petition for Review involves issues of substantial interest to past, current, and future Washington State inmates and to Washington State citizens. It is important for this Court to note, because the Respondents moved for summary judgment prior to class action certification, a dismissal of the Petitioners' individual causes of action is not binding on the putative inmate class members.³ Along with the

³Roberts v. American Airlines, Inc., 526 F.2d 757 (7th Cir. 1975), cert. denied, 425 U.S. 951 (1976).

Petitioners' personal property ownership losses, there are thousands of putative inmate class members, that further discovery would likely show, who suffered significant ownership losses of valuable personal clothing and money to pay mailing costs due to the Respondents' implementation of January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440.000.⁴

Additionally, further discovery would likely bring to light other putative inmate class members who were indigent, like Petitioner Pfaff, on January 1, 2010 (or when they received the request for payment) and when payment was due and who had no choice but to turn over ownership of their personal clothing to the Respondents for donation and/or destruction. Moreover, there are likely putative inmate class members who may have had the money to pay the mailing cost but who did not have an approved non-incarcerated person to mail the personal clothing to or who was willing to store the personal clothing until their release from custody. As citizens of Washington State, these non-incarcerated

⁴There are currently more than 16,000 inmates in WDOC custody. <u>See</u> Washington State Depart of Corrections, http://www.doc.wa.gov/aboutdoc/ and Decl. of Dan Pacholke, CP 54.

⁵RCW 72.09.015(15) defines an indigent inmate as "an inmate who has less than a ten-dollar balance of disposable income in his or her institutional account on the day a request is made to utilize funds and during the the thirty days previous to the request." (emphasis added). CP 187.

individuals, since they are being asked to store inmate valuable personal property until the inmates release from custody, have an unmistakable interest in the Courts interpretation of RCW 72.02.045(3). Liability for the loss or damage of the inmate's personal property would shift to them. For the above-outlined reasons, this Court should accept review of this case.

3. The Petition Involves a Significant Question of Law Under the Constitution of Washington State and the Unites States

As previously stated, the Petitioners filed a complaint, on their behalf and on behalf of the putative inmate class, asserting significant questions of law under the Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S.

Constitution; 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and Article I, §§ 3 and 15 of the Washington State Constitution. All incarcerated inmates in WDOC facilities have a protected property interest in their funds and authorized non-contraband personal property that may not be infringed upon without due process and a rational and legitimate government purpose. Because January 1, 2010 DOC Policy 440,000 not only affected the Petitioners but all inmates in the custody of WDOC, this Court's acceptance of review, due to the lower court's error in dismissing these constitutional claims on

⁶County of Sacramento v. Lewis, 523 U.S. 833, 845-46 (1998); State v. Young, 63 Wn. App. 324, 328-29, 818 P.2d 1375 (1991).

the incorrect conclusion that this policy did not violate RCW 72.02.045(3) and without a discussion on the record, will have a significant impact on the constitutionally protected personal property rights of all Washington inmates.

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