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

IV. ARGUMENTS WHY REVIEW SHOULD NOT BE 
ACCEPTED 

Petitioners argue that review should be accepted under RAP 

13 .4(b) because the Court of Appeals' decision in this case is in conflict 

with this Court's decision in Burton v. Lehman, 153 Wn.2d 416, 103 P.3d 

1230 (2005), because this case involves issues of substantial public 
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interest, and because this case involves "significant questions of law under 

the Constitution of the State of Washington and the United States 

Constitution". Petition for Review at 11. Petitioners' arguments are 

misplaced and this Court should deny review of the well-reasoned 

published decision of the Court of Appeals in this case. 

A. The Court Of Appeals' Decision Does Not Conflict With 
Burton v. Lehman. 

This case concerns only the authority of the Department of 

Corrections to determine what items are contraband in prisons and its 

authority to dispose of such contraband. The Court of Appeals correctly 

decided these issues in the Department's favor and the Court of Appeals' 

decision does not conflict with this Court's decision in Burton v. Lehman. 

The issue in Burton was whether RCW 72.02.045 prohibited the 

Department from requiring an inmate to pay the costs of shipping his/her 

allowable non-contraband personal property whenever the inmate was 

transferred from one Department facility to another: 

Does DOC Policy 440.000, requiring inmates to either pay 
the shipping costs for some of their property or lost 
ownership of that property, violate the requirement in RCW 
72.02.045(3) that DOC superintendents shall deliver inmate 
property upon transfer? 

Burton, 153 Wn.2d at 422. 
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While Burton concluded that the Department policy at issue 

violated RCW 72.02.045(3), Burton did not involve the Department's 

authority to determine what items are contraband in Department facilities 

or the Department's authority to dispose of contraband. The Court of 

Appeals was fully cognizant of Burton and correctly concluded that it did 

not apply to this case. 

To support their argument that DOC is required to store 
their excess personal clothing, Greenhalgh and Pfaff rely 
on our Supreme Court's holding in Burton v. Lehman, 153 
Wn.2d 416, 426, 103 P.3d 1230 (2005) (stating that the 
meanings of "transfer" and "deliver" in RCW 72.02.045(3) 
required DOC to ship inmate property to their new 
institution). Unlike Burton, where the statute clearly 
required DOC's action to transfer and deliver personal 
property, here the definition of"custodian" does not require 
DOC to "preserve or store" Greenhalgh's and Pfaffs 
contraband, even if previously authorized. 

324 P.3d at 775- 76. 

Petitioners' already tenuous reliance on Burton is further undercut 

by subsequent significant amendments to the statute at issue in Burton. 

RCW 72.02.045(3) was amended by the legislature in 2005 shortly after 

and in response to the Court's decision in Burton and since 2005 reads in 

relevant part: 

The superintendent, subject to approval by the secretary, 
has the authority to determine the types and amounts of 
property that convicted persons may possess in department 
facilities. This authority includes the authority to determine 
the types and amounts that the department will transport at 
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the department's expense whenever a convicted person is 
transferred between department institutions or to other 
jurisdictions. Convicted persons are responsible for the 
costs of transporting their excess property. If a convicted 
person fails to pay the costs of transporting any excess 
property within ninety days from the date of transfer, such 
property shall be presumed abandoned and may be 
disposed of in the manner allowed by RCW 63.42.040(1) 
through (3). 

The Court of Appeals' decision in this case is not in conflict with 

Burton which in any event is no longer applicable in light of the 2005 

amendments to RCW 72.02.045(3). 1 

Petitioners also argue that the decision by the Court of Appeals in 

this case conflicts with Burton's conclusion that the trial court erred in 

dismissing the Plaintiffs' non-RCW 72.02.045 claims. Petitioners' 

reliance on this procedural ruling is equally misplaced. In Burton the trial 

court dismissed all claims based on its conclusion that the Plaintiffs' claim 

under RCW 72.02.045(3) was not valid as a matter of law. Here, the trial 

court did not dismiss Petitioners' non-RCW 72.02.045 claims based on its 

dismissal of Petitioners' RCW 72.02.045 claims but instead dismissed 

Petitioners' other claims on their merits in the context of a summary 

1 The 2005 amendments to RCW 72.02.045 not only undermine the current 
viability of Burton, but also seriously undermine Petitioners' claims under RCW 
72.02.045. If Petitioners' boxes of clothing were not contraband, Petitioners could be 
required to pay the costs of shipping them when they were transferred out of the MeN eil 
Island Corrections Center in 2010 and if Petitioners did not pay such costs DOC could 
discard Petitioners' property under the 2005 amendments to RCW 72.02.045. It is 
unfathomable that the legislature intended to allow DOC to dispose of non-contraband 
property inmates failed to pay to ship after a transfer but require DOC to store contraband 
property for years or decades until the inmate owner was released. 
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judgment motion. Nothing in the record of this case even remotely 

suggests that the trial court dismissed Petitioners' other claims on any 

basis other than their lack of merit. The Court of Appeals' decision in this 

case does not conflict with Burton and this Court should therefore deny 

Petitioners' request for review. 

B. Petitioners' Case Does Not Present A Significant Question Of 
Law Under The State Or Federal Constitutions 

Petitioners argue that review is appropriate because Petitioners' 

due process claims under the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. 

Constitution, their due process claims under Article I, §3 of the 

Washington State Constitution, and their forfeiture claim under Article I, 

§ 15 of the Washington State Constitution present significant questions of 

law. Petitioners do not argue that the Court of Appeals incorrectly 

affirmed the grant of summary judgment to Respondents on these claims, 

but instead argue that the trial court improperly dismissed these claims 

based on its statutory analysis and without discussion: 

... due to the lower court's error in dismissing these 
constitutional claims on the incorrect conclusion that this 
policy did not violate RCW 72.02.045(3) and without a 
discussion on the record, ... 

Petition for Review at 17-18. 

Once again, there is no evidence in the record in this case that the 

trial court dismissed Petitioners' constitutional claims based upon its 
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determination of Petitioners' claims under RCW 72.02.045(3). To the 

contrary, the trial court addressed Petitioners' due process claims during 

the hearing on Respondents' motion for summary judgment: 

THE COURT: Thank you. I guess what strikes me in this 
case is that the department did not assert ownership over 
this property until after the inmates had been given an 
opportunity to direct where it should go and failed to take 
advantage of that opportunity to direct where it should go 
and had failed to take advantage of that opportunity. I read 
with interest the Searcy case, and that does appear to me to 
be ... In any event, I believe the case of Searcy v. Simmons 
is instructive. 

In that case, as the court says, "The district court 
reasoned that because under Kansas law Mr. Searcy still 
retained ownership of the property the requirements of due 
process were met when the prison authorities provided him 
the opportunity to dictate where to send the property." As 
to Mr. Searcy's argument that, in all likelihood, the 
relatives would not return the property, the district court 
found it irrelevant because of Mr. Searcy's opportunity to 
dictate where the prison authority should send the property. 

You know, I don't mean to minimize the challenges 
that persons in custody have maintaining their property 
while they're in custody. They often are dealing with 
family members from whom they are estranged, and they 
have friends and relations who have their own challenges 
and may have difficulty safeguarding property for the 
affected individual. And I get that, and I wish that that 
were not the case, but I don't believe that the challenges 
that are presented to inmates require the department to 
become the self-storage unit for inmates. 

Whether or not the department has the capacity to 
do that, I think, is beside the point. That is not the 
responsibility of the superintendent or the head of the 
Department of Corrections. And I say that, being aware of 
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the requirements and responsibilities set forth under 
72.02.045. Certainly, if an individual enters into custody 
with property on his or her possession, the department has a 
responsibility to safeguard that property. But whereas here, 
there's been a change of policy, and the department has 
determined that certain property, although it previously was 
not contraband, will now be defined as contraband, 
provided that the department gives the inmate a reasonable 
opportunity to direct where that property should go, I think 
the department has fulfilled its responsibility under the 
statutory and constitutional law. 

See Verbatim Report of Proceedings at 16-18. 

Petitioners also argue that review is appropriate because the trial 

court failed to "state its reasoning for each cause of action presented for 

summary judgment on the record". Petition for Review at 14. (emphasis 

in original). To support this argument Petitioners cite Burton, US. v. 

Alanis, 335 F.3d 965, n.2 (9th Cir. 2003), and Jordan v. Lefevre, 206 F.3d 

196, 201-02 (2nd Cir. 2000). Petitioners' arguments are misplaced as trial 

courts are not required to articulate their legal analysis and conclusions 

when deciding motions for summary judgment as such analysis and 

conclusions are "superfluous" on appeal. Duckworth v. Bonney Lake, 91 

Wn.2d 19,21-22,586 P.2d 860 (1978). 

The cases Petitioners cite on the issue of the trial court's 

responsibility to articulate its reasons for granting summary judgment do 

not support their argument. Burton did not involve a trial court decision 

on a motion for summary judgment but instead involved a motion to 
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dismiss filed by the defendants which the trial court granted based only on 

its conclusion that the Plaintiffs' claim under RCW 72.02.045(3) was 

meritless. Burton did not suggest, much less hold, that a trial court must 

state its reasons on the record for granting summary judgment on each and 

every claim. 

Petitioners' reliance on the federal cases above is equally 

misplaced. Neither of these cases is a civil case and neither case involved 

a summary judgment motion. Both of these federal cases are criminal in 

nature; Alanis was a criminal appeal and Jordan was a federal habeas 

corpus action. The overarching issue in both these cases was a challenge 

by defendants under Batson v. Kentucky, 476 U.S. 79, 106 S. Ct. 1712 

(1986) to peremptory strikes by prosecutors of potential jurors in 

defendants' criminal trials. In both Alanis and Jordan the courts held that 

a trial court in a criminal case must decide on the record whether a 

prosecutor's stated reasons for striking potential jurors were a pretext for 

discrimination: 

We agree with Alanis that the court was obliged to proceed 
to the third step and to announce a deliberate decision 
accepting or rejecting the claim of purposeful 
discrimination. 

Alanis, 335 F.3d at 967. 
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The narrow holdings in Alanis and Jordan do not apply to motions 

for summary judgment in civil actions in Washington and do not support 

Petitioners' claims of error by the trial court in this case. 

While the trial court did not articulate its reasoning for dismissing 

each of Petitioners' constitutional claims, the Court of Appeals did so in 

its published decision. Petitioners have failed to demonstrate, or even 

attempt to demonstrate, any error in the Court of Appeals' thorough 

analysis and rejection of those claims. Petitioners' case does not present 

significant questions of law under the state or federal constitution and 

review by this Court should be denied. 

C. Petitioners' Case Does Not Present Issues Of Substantial 
Public Interest 

In direct conflict with their argument that review should be granted 

because the Court of Appeals decision in this case conflicts with this 

Court's decision in Burton, Petitioners argue that review should be granted 

because: 

Resolution of this case also turns upon construction of 
statutory language that has not been defined by the 
legislature and that has not been interpreted by this Court. 

Petition for Review at 15. 

Petitioners also argue that there is a substantial public interest in 

this Court deciding whether "previously authorized non-contraband 
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inmate personal property can be reclassified as contraband". Petition for 

Review at 15. Petitioners' arguments are misplaced. 

The public interest is not served by allowing inmates, like 

Petitioners, who refused to send out their property at state expense when 

given the opportunity to do so and squandered other opportunities to send 

their property out at no expense, to secure monetary damages from the 

state. The public interest is also not served by this Court deciding whether 

prison officials can reclassify inmate property from non-contraband to 

contraband and require inmates to send out such property, when that 

question has long been resolved against Petitioners by both case law and 

Washington statutes. See Searcy v. Simmons, 299 F.3d 1220 (lOth Cir. 

2002) (prison officials did not violate prisoner's rights by sending inmate 

property out of institution after prisoner failed to take advantage of 

opportunity to dictate where property would be sent); Hatten v. White, 275 

F.3d 1208, 1209 (lOth Cir. 2002) ("Hatten was allowed to send the 

property he could not possess in prison to a place of his choosing and 

therefore was not deprived of the property."); Casco v. Uphoff, 195 F.3d 

1221 (1Oth Cir. 1999) (prison officials did not violate inmates' due process 

rights by enforcing new and more restrictive property policy); Savko v. 

Rollins, 749 F. Supp. 1403 (D. Md. 1990) (rejecting claim that inmates are 

entitled to either the value of property that is confiscated as violative of a 
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new and more restrictive property policy or the costs of mailing out the 

non-compliant property). See also RCW 72.09.015(5) (contraband is any 

object or item that inmates may not possess); RCW 63.42.020(3) (same); 

See also WAC 137-36-020(1) (same) and WAC 137-48-020(1) (same). 

The Court of Appeals correctly decided this case and the public 

interest is best served by allowing the Court of Appeals decision to stand. 

V. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, Petitioners' Petition for Review should 

be denied.